CITY OF KEARNS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

' CITY OF
. JANUARY 12, 2026, 6:00 PM
ELEMENT EVENT CENTER- 5658 COUGAR LN, KEARNS, UTAH 84118

CITY OF KEARNS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
January 12, 2026

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS EXCUSED:
Jesse Valdez, Mayor

Chrystal Butterfield

Lyndsay Longtin

Lorrin Colby, Jr.

Patrick Schaeffer

STAFF PRESENT:

Nathan Bracken, City Attorney

Diana Baun, City Recorder

Police Chief Jason Mazuran, Unified Police Department
Chief Levi Hughes, Unified Police Department
Chief Tyler Lintz, Unified Fire Authority

Dan Torres, Economic Development Manager
Marla Howard, MSD General Manager

Trent Sorenson, Planning Director

Maridene Alexander, Communications Manager
Kory Holdaway, Lobbyist

Dan Adams, Langdon Group

Others Present:

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Jesse Valdez, presiding, called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

2. DETERMINE QUORUM

Mayor Jesse Valdez announced that a quorum was present allowing the meeting to proceed.

3. VISITING PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Mayor Valdez noted there were many public officials in attendance due to the nature of the
meeting and thanked them for their attendance and support of the City of Kearns.

4. OATH OF OFFICE CEREMONY
A. Pledge of Allegiance — Unified Police Department Color Guard

CITY OF KEARNS COUNCIL
MAYOR JESSE VALDEZ, COUNCIL MEMBER CHRYSTAL BUTTERFIELD,
COUNCIL MEMBER LYNDSAY LONGTIN, COUNCIL MEMBER LORRIN COLBY, JR.,
COUNCIL MEMBER PATRICK SCHAEFFER



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 2
Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

B. Performance of the Star Spangled Banner - Kearns High School Madrigals

C. Oath of Office Administration for Newly Elected Officials — Diana Baun, City Recorder
a. Lorrin Colby, Jr. — District 4 Council Member
b. Lyndsay Longtin — District 2 Council Member
c. Jesse Valdez — Mayor

D. Comments from Newly Elected Officials

Mayor Jesse Valdez thanked family, friends, and supporters for their long-standing
encouragement and support, acknowledging the influence of personal relationships in shaping
their leadership. He expressed gratitude to his wife and children for providing balance and
stability, thanked his mother for instilling perseverance, and honored his late father for teaching
the importance of integrity and courage. Mayor Valdez also recognized campaign supporters
and emphasized that collective effort makes meaningful progress possible. He stated that the
responsibilities of the office were just beginning and stressed that achieving the city’s goals
would require teamwork and community involvement rather than the actions of a single
individual. He affirmed a commitment to serve all residents of Kearns, including those who did
not support his election, emphasizing that shared concern for the city’s future united the
community. He stated that the city’s success depended on putting community interests ahead
of individual interests and acknowledged the passion of Kearns residents. He identified
listening as his first initiative, explaining that leadership must actively hear constituent voices to
build a strong foundation for the future. He outlined priorities including public services and
safety, development and infrastructure, and transparent and accessible governance, and
emphasized the importance of community engagement at the neighborhood level. Mayor
Valdez concluded by encouraging residents to shape and tell his own story as a community
and invited both newly elected and current council members to speak.

Council Member Lorrin Colby, Jr. thanked voters for their support and stated that he was
surprised by the election outcome. He described extensive door-to-door outreach during the
campaign and explained that conversations with residents revealed needs beyond campaign
materials. He noted that a major concern expressed by residents was not knowing who their
representatives were or how to contact them for information. He stated that making himself
accessible and ensuring constituents knew how to reach his was a top personal priority and
emphasized that his decision to run was rooted in genuine care for the residents of the district.

Council Member Chrystal Butterfield thanked attendees for being present and emphasized that
community participation and having a voice were essential. She reflected on prior experience
serving on the council and earlier work on the community council, stating that the city had a
strong community foundation. She expressed enthusiasm about beginning the new term and
working toward progress.

Council Member Patrick Schaeffer thanked the audience for attending and noted the strong
turnout. He congratulated Council Member Colby, Mayor Valdez, and Council Member Longtin
on their elections and acknowledged the shared goal among council members to improve the
city. They emphasized the importance of maintaining momentum and referenced the upcoming
Olympics in approximately 10 years as a reason to begin focused planning. He concluded by
congratulating the new council members and expressing optimism for future accomplishments.

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 o Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 3

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Council Member Lyndsay Longtin thanked attendees for their participation and referenced
ongoing community involvement. She informed the public that there were three open seats on
the Kearns Community Council and encouraged interested residents to apply.

5. CITIZEN PUBLIC INPUT

Nicole McDermott introduced herself as a Granite School District Board member representing
approximately half of Kearns. She congratulated the newly elected mayor and council
members and expressed enthusiasm about working collaboratively with city leadership. She
stated that the school district shared the same vision of prioritizing what was best for the city,
families, and students, and encouraged council members to reach out with any questions or
concerns.

Erica Ton asked a general question regarding the open Community Council seats mentioned
earlier, specifically requesting clarification on what serving on the Kearns Community Council
involved and what responsibilities the role carried.

Paula Larsen responded briefly, offering to speak with Erica after the meeting to provide
additional information about the Community Council.

Jordan Hansen, a current resident and former opponent of Lyndsay Longtin, congratulated
the new mayor and council members and wished them success. Jordan Hansen proposed the
idea of forming a Kearns Youth Council as a way to engage youth in leadership, mentoring,
and civic involvement. He stated that while the formal process for establishing such a council
was not yet defined, he wanted to raise the idea as a concerned citizen seeking support.

Bill Gertson congratulated the new mayor and council members and expressed admiration for
his own child’s dedication to running for public office. He stated he would continue to support
the city as an engaged citizen whenever possible.

Christopher Gertson acknowledged Bill Gertson as his parent and stated that despite not
winning in the primary election, he was glad to remain involved in civic processes. He
congratulated the elected council members and shared that he were actively serving on the
Kearns Community Coalition, focusing on youth prevention efforts related to substance use.
He stated his intention to continue that work and wished the council success.

Christina Robles identified herself as a local business owner who operated a dual immersion
preschool in Kearns and additional preschools in Magna. She shared personal background as
a Hispanic individual who grew up in Magna and had lived in Kearns for approximately 15
years. She spoke about the importance of representation in leadership and explained that the
children they served were largely from economically disadvantaged families, with
approximately 90% receiving free or reduced lunch or child care subsidies. She congratulated
the mayor and council, stating that their leadership provided meaningful representation and
inspiration for children in the community. She expressed appreciation for the council’s
willingness to serve and indicated interest in learning more about City Council involvement.

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 * Kearns, UT 84118 o 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 4
Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Charles Henderson, a longtime Kearns resident of nearly 50 years, congratulated Mayor
Jesse Valdez and the newly joined council members. He shared prior experience serving on
the Community Council and discussed involvement with the My Kearns Coalition, which
focused on youth development and prevention efforts. He described programs addressing
suicide ideation, youth decision-making, and parental education at local junior high schools
and Kearns High School. He expressed appreciation for the mayor’s open-door approach and
emphasized the importance of investing in youth for the community’s future. He also
referenced the upcoming Olympics and stated a desire for Kearns to experience long-term
benefits and generational improvements rather than missed opportunities.

Lance Misiaga introduced himself as a representative of the Western States Carpenters and
congratulated the mayor and council members. He expressed appreciation for Mayor Jesse
Valdez and shared that the organization participated in community events and volunteer work.
He stated a willingness to support the city through service and encouraged residents to attend
council meetings and make their voices heard. He shared that although he had lived in Kearns
for only two years, he felt welcomed and proud to be part of the community.

Thelma expressed excitement and optimism about the newly elected council and shared high
hopes for the impact their leadership would have on the community, particularly within the
Latino community. She congratulated the council and reminded them that many supporters
stood behind them even if not physically present.

Jacinda Allen introduced herself as a local real estate agent and resident of Kearns. She
expressed excitement about the council and spoke about representing Kearns to new
homebuyers and families, as well as assisting long-term residents. She described efforts to
provide new residents with information about community resources and emphasized pride in
being part of a caring and engaged community. She congratulated the mayor and council
members.

Diana Reyes introduced herself as the Kearns Coalition health coordinator with the Salt Lake
County Health Department. She described collaborative efforts with community members to
prevent youth substance use and invited others to participate in the coalition. She expressed
appreciation for Mayor Jesse Valdez and the council and stated enthusiasm for working
together on projects benefiting Kearns.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to take a short recess before they transitioned from
the swearing-in portion of the meeting to the general business portion of tonight’s
council meeting. Council Member Butterfield seconded the motion; vote was 5-0,
unanimous in favor.

6. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approve City Council Minutes
a. December 8, 2025

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 o 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 5

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Council Member Butterfield moved to approve the December 8, 2025 City Co_uncil
Meeting Minutes as published. Council Member Schaeffer seconded the motion; vote

was 5-0, unanimous in favor.
B. Monthly Financial Report (Acknowledgment of Report)

Nathan Bracken explained that, due to the presence of three new council members, state law
required the City Council to review the city’s financials on a quarterly basis. He stated that best
practice allowed council members to review financial inflows and outflows on a monthly basis,
even if a formal presentation was not given each month. He clarified that the financial
documents were included in the council packet for review at each meeting and that council
members could direct any questions to Municipal Services District staff for follow-up outside
the meeting. He noted that a more detailed financial presentation and report would be provided
by Municipal Services District staff at the end of each quarter. He asked the council whether
they preferred to continue reviewing financials monthly without a presentation and receive a
detailed quarterly report, or whether they wanted Municipal Services District staff to present
financials at every meeting.

Council Member Patrick Schaeffer stated that quarterly presentations were sufficient, noting
that the council still received and reviewed the financial information on a monthly basis through
the meeting packets.

Nathan Bracken clarified that the financials were already available for review and that council
members could raise questions during meetings if concerns arose, but staff was not routinely
preparing monthly presentations. They reiterated that the decision rested with the council
regarding presentation frequency.

Council Member Patrick Schaeffer reiterated that quarterly presentations were acceptable and
deferred to the mayor for the final decision.

Mayor Jesse Valdez confirmed that the council would proceed with receiving detailed financial
presentations every three months while continuing to review the financial reports monthly
through the council packets.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to have the council acknowledge receipt of the
monthly financial report as published. Council Member Longtin seconded the motion;
vote was 5-0, unanimous in favor.

7. WORKSHOP
A. Discussion on Kearns' Mission, Vision and Values — Jesse Valdez, Mayor

Mayor Jesse Valdez stated that the council would move into a workshop discussion, clarifying
that the items discussed were for discussion only and that no decisions would be made. He
introduced the first topic as a discussion of Kearns’ mission, vision, and values, describing it as
an opportunity to reflect on the future of the city and emphasizing that Kearns was entering an
important and exciting period. He reiterated that a primary priority was listening to constituents

City of Kearns * 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 o Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 6

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

before setting direction or plans. He explained a desire to collaborate with the cour_'lcil to
organize listening tours in each council district, or as close to each district as poss_;lbl_e, to hgar
directly from residents. He stated that listening first would help inform the city’s mission, vision,
and values moving forward. He proposed that these listening tours be followed by a town ha!l
and suggested that town halls be held on a quarterly basis, separate from regular city council
meetings, to provide focused opportunities for community engagement. He also proposed
creating leadership forums that would include community leaders and residents, with the goal
of building a strong foundation for civic involvement. He emphasized the importance of
bridging the perceived gap between residents and city leadership, noting that some residents
may feel intimidated or disconnected from the mayor or council. He stated that they wanted to
make city leadership more accessible and approachable.

Mayor Jesse Valdez discussed the possibility of forming committees and noted the existing
role of the Community Council as an advisory body. He expressed interest in building upon
and working closely with the Community Council while also expanding opportunities for
broader community participation. He summarized that the mission, vision, and values
discussion centered on listening, planning collaboratively, and ensuring that future strategies
aligned with the city’s overall strategic plan and branding. He asked if council members had
any questions or ideas related to the discussion and then moved the meeting forward to the
next agenda item, which was the introduction of the Langdon Group redevelopment and
economic development discussion with Nathan Bracken and legal counsel.

B. Introduction of the Langdon Group (Redevelopment/Economic Development)

Nathan Bracken provided background on the city’s recent economic development efforts,
explaining that the prior council had spent nearly two years developing an economic
development plan for the entire city, including preparations related to the Olympics. He stated
that the city had established a Community Redevelopment Agency to help attract businesses
and support redevelopment efforts. He explained that implementing the plan would require
coordination among more than two dozen stakeholders due to the varied areas within the city,
including the downtown area, potential Olympic-related sites, Camp Kearns, which had
recently resolved longstanding issues allowing for development, and several other smaller
redevelopment areas. He explained that, in the fall, the prior council entered into a contract
with the Langdon Group, specifically Dan Adams and Brianne Bigelow, to serve as facilitators
for the redevelopment process. He stated that the Langdon Group’s role was to conduct
stakeholder outreach, coordinate complex interests, and work closely with the city council and
Dan Torres, the city’s Economic Development Director, to move the redevelopment plan
forward. Nathan Bracken shared that they had worked with Dan Adams for approximately 15
years and described them as highly effective at facilitating complex, multi-stakeholder
processes. He stated that additional details regarding property acquisition strategies and
redevelopment efforts would be discussed later and invited Dan Adams to introduce himself
and their firm.

Dan Adams introduced himself and described the Langdon Group'’s work with local, state, and
federal government agencies to help them collaborate effectively with communities and
stakeholders. He explained that his firm specialized in conducting assessments to identify

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 7

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

community needs, concerns, and priorities, as well as helping government entiti_es wprl_<
together more effectively. He stated that their work with Kearns would focus on ldentlfylng_
opportunities related to development and redevelopment, particularly in light of the upcoming
Olympics, with the goal of benefiting the community and strengthening the city's tax i_)ase. Mr.
Adams expressed enthusiasm about beginning the work and engaging further with city
leadership.

Nathan Bracken clarified for the record that the Langdon Group was selected through a

competitive procurement process conducted in accordance with the city's purchasing code,
and that Dan Adams’ firm was awarded the contract as the winning bidder. Nathan Bracken
then transitioned to the next agenda item and introduced Kory Holdaway, the city’s lobbyist.

C. Introduction of Kory Holdaway (Kearns Lobbyist)

Nathan Bracken explained that the legislative session was approaching and would begin
before the council's next meeting. He stated that Kory Holdaway would serve as the primary
point of contact between the city and the legislature during the session and would
communicate with council members regarding proposed legislation that could impact the city,
including bills that might affect the city’s economic development plans either positively or
negatively. Nathan Bracken noted that Kory Holdaway would also participate in closed session
discussions related to legislative strategy.

Kory Holdaway congratulated the newly elected and returning council members and
congratulated Mayor Jesse Valdez on their election. He introduced himself as the city’s
lobbyist and provided background on his experience, stating that he previously served as a
legislator for six terms representing areas including Taylorsville and West Valley City. He
explained that after leaving the legislature, he began working as a lobbyist, including several
years representing a teachers’ association, and had been working independently for
approximately a dozen years. He stated that he had represented Kearns for the past two to
three years, beginning prior to the city’s incorporation, and expressed appreciation for the
opportunity to continue serving in that role. He emphasized the importance of engagement
during the legislative session and stated that participation in membership organizations was
critical for cities. He encouraged council members to be involved with the League of Cities and
Towns, noting that the organization met weekly during the legislative session to review bills
affecting municipalities. He also recommended involvement with Chamber West, highlighting
its Legislative Affairs Committee and its role in reviewing proposed legislation. He stated that
participation in these organizations amplified the city’s voice at the legislature and helped build
relationships that supported the city’s goals. He concluded by emphasizing the importance of
building and maintaining relationships in the legislative process and expressed his intent to
continue working closely with the mayor and council members in support of the city’'s mission.

8. PRESENTATION ITEMS — None

9. COUNCIL BUSINESS — ACTION ITEMS

A. Election of Mayor Pro Tem

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 » 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 8

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Nathan Bracken explained that at the beginning of each year, city councils typically review and
renew committee and board assignments. He clarified that these assignments referred to
various boards and special districts that provided services to Kearns, noting that Kearns, like
several other Utah cities, relied heavily on special districts for municipal services. He stated
that while many appointments would be addressed at a later meeting, there were two
appointments that required formal action through resolutions, including appointments to
SLVLESA and the UPD Board. Before addressing those, he introduced the need to elect a
Mayor Pro Tem. He explained that under Utah law, the council had the option to elect a Mayor
Pro Tem, who would assume mayoral duties when the mayor was unavailable. He described
typical situations in which a Mayor Pro Tem might be needed, such as presiding over
meetings, covering during absences, or responding to emergencies when the mayor was out
of town. Mr. Bracken stated that although it was ultimately the council’s decision, best practice
was to elect a Mayor Pro Tem in advance rather than addressing the issue during an
emergency. He also noted that some councils rotated the position annually due to the
additional workload. He then turned the discussion back to the mayor and council.

Mayor Jesse Valdez invited input from council members, specifically asking for thoughts from
Council Member Schaeffer and Council Member Butterfield.

Council Member Patrick Schaeffer stated that having a Mayor Pro Tem was important, citing
past instances when the prior mayor had been unable to attend meetings and the Mayor Pro
Tem stepped in to preside. He stated that having a designated backup was a good and
practical idea.

Council Member Chrystal Butterfield stated that she would like to make a nomination and
nominated Council Member Schaeffer to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. She cited Council Member
Schaeffer's experience and familiarity with city operations as reasons for the nomination.

Council Member Schaeffer responded by stating that while he was not seeking authority or
recognition, he was willing to serve as Mayor Pro Tem if the council wished and expressed a
desire to help fulfill the responsibilities associated with the role.

Mayor Jesse Valdez stated that they anticipated relying heavily on the experience of Council
Member Schaeffer and Council Member Butterfield and indicated that he would have been
comfortable with either individual serving in the role of Mayor Pro Tem.

Council Member Butterfield moved to nominate Council Member Patrick Scaheffer as
the Mayor Pro Tem. Council Member Longtin seconded the motion; vote was 5-0,
unanimous in favor.

B. Resolution R2026-01, Appointing a Representative to the Greater Salt Lake Municipal
Services District (MSD) Board

Nathan Bracken then explained that an additional, critical appointment needed to be made to
the Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District Board. He noted that historically the mayor
automatically served on the board, but that policy had changed within the past year, allowing

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 9

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

any council member to be appointed. He described the Municipal Services Distrigt as the gntity
that provided nearly all administrative and operational services for Kearns, including plannl_ng
and zoning, code enforcement, financial services, and day-to-day administration. He explained
that the city’s representative on the board would work alongside other board members,
including the county’s representative, to oversee and manage district staff. He further
explained that appointment to the Municipal Services District Board required a formal
resolution. He clarified that special district boards function as separate political subdivisions,
similar in authority to a city council, and therefore did not typically allow alternates. He stated
that only one representative could be appointed to the Municipal Services District Board and
that the council would receive required training following the appointment. He noted that a draft
resolution had been prepared and included in the meeting packet, with the appointee’s name
left blank pending the council’s decision.

Mayor Jesse Valdez invited input from council members regarding the appointment. Mayor
Valdez then stated a desire to serve as the city’s representative on the Municipal Services
District Board, explaining that because the district functioned as the city’s primary
administrative staff, it was important for the mayor to take on that role.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to appoint Mayor Valdez as the representative to the
MSD Board of Trustees. Council Member Butterfield seconded the motion; vote was 5-0,
unanimous in favor.

C. Resolution R2026-02, Appointing a Representative to the Unified Police Department
(UPD) and Salt Lake Valley Law Enforcement Service Area (SLVLESA) Boards

Nathan Bracken explained that appointments to the Unified Police Department and the Salt
Lake Valley Law Enforcement Service Agency were typically handled together because, while
they were separate entities, they were closely connected. He clarified that the Unified Police
Department was an interlocal entity created by agreement and governed by Utah law and its
interlocal agreement, serving as the city’s police force. He stated that the representative
appointed to the UPD board served as part of the governing body overseeing the police
department. He contrasted this with SLVLESA, which was a special district governed by Utah
Code Title 17B and functioned primarily as the taxing entity responsible for collecting property
taxes to fund police services. He noted that similar governance structures existed for unified
fire services, though those appointments were not being addressed at this meeting. He stated
that past councils had typically appointed the same individual to both the UPD and SLVLESA
boards for continuity and efficiency, though the council was not required to do so. They
explained that a resolution had been prepared assuming a joint appointment and that a formal
letter would be sent to both entities to confirm the council’s action, consistent with past
practice.

Mayor Jesse Valdez emphasized the importance of public safety and stated that, given his
background in law enforcement, he had a strong interest in the UPD and SLVLESA
appointments. He expressed an initial inclination to serve in that role but stated a desire to
hear from other council members to ensure the workload was manageable and to gauge
interest from others.

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 Kearns, UT 84118 » 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 10

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Council Member Lyndsay Longtin stated that she was interested in the appointment. Council
Member Chrystal Butterfield stated that she had previously served as an alternate on the
board for six years. Nathan Bracken clarified that alternates were used for the UPD board but
not for SLVLESA. He stated that the resolution could be amended to include an alternate
appointment if the council chose to do so.

Mayor Jesse Valdez stated that he would prefer to serve as an alternate rather than the
primary representative, noting concerns about workload, particularly given the time
commitment associated with other assignments. Nathan Bracken stated that the Municipal
Services District board was the most time-intensive, meeting twice per month, and that the
UPD and SLVLESA boards were the next most demanding in terms of time.

Council Member Patrick Schaeffer stated that he was willing to serve as the primary
representative to the UPD and SLVLESA boards and formally expressed interest in taking on
that responsibility. Mayor Jesse Valdez stated that he would like to serve as the alternate.

Nathan Bracken explained that, under this arrangement, the resolution would need to be
amended to appoint Council Member Schaeffer as the city’s representative to both the Unified
Police Department and SLVLESA boards, with Mayor Jesse Valdez designated as the
alternate for the UPD board. Nathan Bracken framed the motion for the council, stating that the
motion would be to appoint Council Member Schaeffer as the representative to the UPD and
SLVLESA boards, with Mayor Valdez as the alternate representative to the UPD board only.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to appoint representatives as framed in Nathan’s
motion, with himself as the representative for the UPD and SLVLESA Boards, with
Mayor Valdez as the alternate representative to the UPD Board only. Council Member
Butterfield seconded the motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in favor.

D. Selection of Kearns City Representatives for Utah League of Cities and Town’s
Legislative Policy Committee

Nathan Bracken explained that tracking legislation during the state legislative session was
challenging due to the volume of bills, noting that approximately 1,300 bills were introduced
during the prior session. He stated that while he were registered as a lobbyist for Kearns in a
subject-matter capacity, Kory Holdaway served as the city’s primary lobbyist and was present
at the legislature daily. Nathan Bracken emphasized that the League of Cities and Towns
played a critical role in coordinating municipal responses to legislation and allowed cities to
have a stronger collective voice through the League’s Legislative Policy Committee. He
explained that the Legislative Policy Committee met weekly, typically every Monday during the
legislative session, to review key bills affecting cities and towns. He stated that Kearns, as a
dues-paying member of the League, was entitled to vote through its representatives and could
appoint up to three representatives to the committee. He noted that historically, the prior mayor
had served as Kearns’ primary representative and that, with the change in leadership, the
council needed to designate at least one representative for the upcoming session. He
explained that participation could be in person or virtual, that meetings typically lasted between

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 o Kearns, UT 84118 * 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 11

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

1.5 and 2 hours, and that having an elected official present was important because real-time
voting and direction on legislative positions was often required.

Mayor Jesse Valdez asked for council input on Legislative Policy Committee representation.
Council Member Chrystal Butterfield stated that she had previously been listed as a member
but that the prior mayor handled most of the responsibility. Council Member Patrick Schaeffer
asked whether the appointment needed to be made that evening and acknowledged the time
sensitivity due to the legislative session. Nathan Bracken confirmed that a decision was
needed promptly.

Council Member Lorrin Colby, Jr. expressed interest but sought clarification regarding time
commitments and potential conflicts with other committee assignments. Nathan Bracken
responded that no other city-related boards met during the same Monday midday time frame
and that the commitment was concentrated during the short legislative session. Kory Holdaway
added that the meetings were manageable, provided critical information on legislation
impacting cities, and allowed representatives to communicate directly with legislators, noting
both virtual and in-person participation options.

Council Member Lorrin Colby, Jr. stated a willingness to serve after receiving clarification on
expectations and scheduling. Mayor Jesse Valdez emphasized the importance of legislative
engagement for Kearns and stated a desire to be involved while also being mindful of
workload. Nathan Bracken and Kory Holdaway both noted that it was beneficial for the mayor
to serve as one of the representatives, as the mayor’s role carried additional influence in
legislative discussions and relationship-building.

After further discussion, Mayor Jesse Valdez proposed that the city’s representatives to the
League of Cities and Towns Legislative Policy Committee be Mayor Jesse Valdez, Council
Member Lyndsay Longtin, and Council Member Lorrin Colby, Jr. Council Member Patrick
Schaeffer expressed agreement with this approach and supported maintaining continuity with
the prior practice of mayoral involvement. The council reached consensus on this
representation, with the understanding that participation could be adjusted later if needed due
to workload or scheduling constraints.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to appoint Mayor Valdez, Council Members Colby and
Longtin as the city’s representatives to the Utah League of Cities and Town’s
Legislative Policy Committee. Council Member Butterfield seconded the motion; vote
was 5-0, unanimous in favor.

10. Stakeholder Updates/Information

A. Kearns Improvement District (KID) - Greg Anderson, General Manager

Greg Anderson addressed the Mayor and Council to offer congratulations and expressed
appreciation for the opportunity to provide regular updates on the Kearns Improvement
District's activities. He stated that the district had been certified during the previous month by
the Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with the American Water Infrastructure

City of Kearns * 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 ¢ Kearns, UT 84118 » 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 12

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

Act, specifically meeting national risk and resiliency requirements as well as emergency
preparedness standards, resulting in nationwide certification. Greg Ander§0n reported that tlhe
second phase of the 5400 South water line project would begin the following month, extending
from the golf course road to the amphitheater near the Mountain View Corridor, with ‘
construction starting at the tank site near the corridor and later progressing down the median
of 5400 South as weather conditions improved, with completion anticipated by June of the
same year. He also announced that the district would begin its 2026 water conservation art
contest the next day, with outreach planned to schools, businesses, and the broader
community, noting that the contest would include cash prizes and that winning submissions
would be incorporated into the district’s annual WaterSense promotion as part of a national
EPA water conservation initiative. Greg Anderson concluded by reporting that the district’'s
water use in the prior year was 2% lower than the year before, expressed appreciation for
community conservation efforts, and reiterated interest in continuing to work with the Mayor
and Council.

B. Kearns Library - Lee Whiting, Librarian

Lee Whiting congratulated the newly elected officials. Shared a program in partnership with the
University of Utah’s Wellness bus that was presented last fall by staff and students from the
university. The program is called Move Together for Health, participants in the class will
receive supplies to keep after the completion of the program and he invited the public to check
the branch’s calendar available online for more details and dates.

C. Wasatch Front Waste Recycling District (WFWRD) - Renee Plant, Manager

Renee Plant congratulated the newly elected officials and provided updates, indicating she will
now attend once a quarter for updates, with the next one being in April with updates on use
and programs being explored for the future. She reminded everyone of the conversion to
monthly billing, rather than quarterly, and noted that each bill received is paying for services
already provided. She also noted that the due dates have been adjusted and will now be the
last day of the month. The Seasonal Container Reservation Program is still changing, but will
still be in the driveways. They are increasing the capacity for availability from 60-65 a day to
70-75 a day, with more things in the works to continue raising that capacity in 2027. Regarding
live Christmas Tree disposal, go on their website, fill out the form and leave the tree next to
your trash cans.

D. Unified Fire Authority (UFA) - Chief Lintz

Chief Tyler Lintz congratulated the newly elected officials. There was a notable call on
December 30' with a house fire, and this was a chance for the new Station 107 and Station
109 respond together on a call and see the impact of that. All crews were there within 4
minutes, with reports of two people trapped in the house. They exercised some unprotected
searches, which is high risk and fortunately there were no victims inside. There was a dog that
perished despite attempts to save the pet. They are currently accepting nonperishable food
items at their fire station. He also noted that it was determined the fire was the result of an
unattended space heater, and this is the second fire he has been on in the last 2 weeks with

City of Kearns ¢ 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 o Kearns, UT 84118 » 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 13

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

that same cause. He reminded everyone to keep space heaters away from combustible items,
don't leave them unattended and ensure they are unplugged before you leave the home.
Regarding call volume, at Station 107, their engine ran 131 calls, and ambulance 107 ran 126
calls. At Station 109, the ladder ran 188 calls, and the ambulance ran 151 calls.

E. Unified Police Department (UPD)

Chief Jason Mazuran introduced himself, letting the city know the have the best police
department in the state and how proud he is of the work they do. They love Kearns and
congratulated the new council members and mayor. His job is to watch over the entire police
department, including working with Chief Hughes to ensure the community is getting
everything they need and the best service.

Chief Levi Hughes congratulated the new council members. He shared some comments about
how professionally Ms. Plant handled some passionate comments during a prior meeting, and
thanked her for doing such an amazing job and handling the stress so well. He then noted that
during the pledge of allegiance tonight he heard a comment that he felt should be addressed. It
was not the pledge of allegiance, and he noted that there are many things in our country that
give us reason to reflect. Everyone here today are representatives of our government, and it's
important that people remember what the pledge of allegiance stands for, and what it's actually
telling us. It goes deeper, it goes into patriotism; what is a patriot? A patriot is a person who is
loyal to a nation, to a cause. A patriot supports a message, something greater than
themselves. You don’t have to agree with everyone in government to be a patriot, in fact that is
not the definition of what a patriot it. A patriot is supporting a country, a purpose, a greater
meaning than themselves. So, when we pledge allegiance to our flag, we are not pledging to
some random idea out there, and supporting something that we don’t believe in. We are
stating that we believe in this nation, that we believe in what it can do, what is can be, and
what it can accomplish. He felt bad for the individual whose comments he overheard, noting he
wasn't upset, but he doesn't believe that everybody recognizes what that pledge fully and truly
means. When that flag was made back in 1777, it represented a nation that was coming
together, that had overcome tyranny together, that was quite frankly on a path that they didn’t
know where it would take them. But, here we are, hundreds of years later, still flying that same
beautiful flag, stating that same pledge of allegiance. He will always stand and put his hand
over his heart and pledge allegiance to that flag, and to a nation whose purpose is greater than
what we are. We should have a vision to take it to a place that it should go. He is a patriot to
this country, and he will stand for it, live for it and die for it. He then had Faith bring up some
binders for the council regarding UPD stats and information, encouraging them to keep them
throughout the years so that each time they share their data and stats, they can place that
information in the binder to reference when constituents present questions. In this last month,
there was a beer run that received some attention on social media, noting an employee
chased the individual on the beer run, who then during escape used their car to pin and injure
the employee. He got away with that robbery that night, but the detectives in Kearns did a
fantastic job with what little information they had to locate that individual a few days later. They
surrounded the house, saw the individual inside, along with some other things which granted a
search warrant, and the individuals surrendered. They ended up arresting the individual for the
robbery with all the evidence they needed, as well as closing down a drug house at the same

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 14

Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

time. He noted that their detectives have been working hard to solve all crimes, espec.ially
things stolen from residences. Recently they were working on a case where they pbtalned
enough evidence to get a knock and announce daytime warrant, noting that despite what
criminals believe, they will knock a door down to get them. In this case they were able to have
multiple other city’s units on the deployment. A lot of the work being done relies on resources
outside of Kearns because of the UPD structure. He shared about a domestic call last month
with a gun, an argument between roommates where the gun was pulled as a result, which
required a large response. He praised the UPD negotiators and their ability to talk the man out
with no injuries and noted that their large SWAT team of around 45-50 members consists of
members of 4-5 different agencies as well, so the resources are plentiful. He then brought up
UPD 101 needing to be done with the council members, and they agreed to do that prior to the
meeting at the end of the month.

F. Kearns Community Council — Paula Larsen
Ms. Larsen had to leave early, she will share updates at the next meeting.

11.0Other Business

A. Future Agenda Business

Nathan Bracken noted he had shared a list of topics to go over this month with the council
before this meeting, and some have been taken care of. He noted the following still needed to
be done: Finalizing other board appointments, multiple related trainings, conflict of interest
disclosures, finalizing code restatements.

Council Member Schaeffer moved to recess the City Council Meeting and move into
Closed Session for the reasons indicated below. Council Member Butterfield seconded
that motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in favor.

12.Closed Session if Needed as Allowed Pursuant to Utah Code §52-4-205

A. Discussion of the character, professional competence or physical or mental
health of an individual

Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation
Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real _property
Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems; and/or
Other lawful purposes as listed in Utah Code §52-4-205

moow

13. Adjourn

Council Member Butterfield moved to adjourn the January 12, 2026 City Council
Meeting. Council Member Schaeffer seconded the motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in
favor.

City of Kearns » 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



Kearns City Council Meeting Page 15
Element Event Center
January 12, 2026

This is a true and correct copy of the January 12, 2026 City Council Meeting Minutes,
which were approved on February 9, 2026.

Attest:

%‘“% e aldez, Ma

Diana Baun, City Recorder

City of Kearns ® 4956 W 6200 S, Suite #527 » Kearns, UT 84118 ¢ 801-654-2123



